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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – JUNE 25, 2009

(Time Noted – 7:03 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; but the Board may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. And I'd also like to ask anyone who has a cell phone to please turn the cell phone off so that we will not be interrupted. And also when speaking please speak directly into the microphone because it is being recorded. And also the Members of the Board have made site visits so that we are aware of what the property looks like. We'll start with roll call. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY







DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

ALSO PRESENT: 
BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

    



(Time Noted – 7:04 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 25, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:04 PM) 



DAVID DIEMER



762 GARDNERTOWN ROAD, NBGH







(51-9-4.21) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the minimum lot area requirement to keep a prior built accessory apartment. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening David Diemer.               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, June 16th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday June 17th. The applicant sent out sixteen registered letters, sixteen were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Please identify yourself for the record and state your request.

Mr. Diemer: David Diemer and I'm trying to get a variance to have a accessory apartment in my house on 762 Gardnertown Road. 

Chairperson Cardone: And do you reside at that location?

Mr. Diemer: I will if I get the variance, the two months out of the year I'm in the country, yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: I have several.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Mr. Hughes. 

Mr. Hughes: I don't know how this got referred to us when there are so many parts to the puzzle that are missing and I'd like to cite them and we'll go down in the order that they appear in requirements from the old zoning and the new which is concurrent under the time that you've applied for this to happen. Under R-1 you're supposed to have 40,000 sq. ft. and you only have 15,000, which is about a 300% overage. That's a substantial difference in an R-1. It also says here that you don't have water or sewer, which is one of the requirements for something in this situation. It also requires a lot width of 150 feet which you don't have and a front yard of 50 feet which you don't have and side yard combination of 80 feet which you don't have because you only have .034 of an acre and the way the house is set out it would be impossible to get any of those combinations in here just right off the bat. If you want me to continue with the rest of the stuff that I see deficient I'll continue on now or hold it for later but I really believe that either the Planning Department or the Building Inspector missed a whole bunch of stuff here and should have never sent you here to begin with. Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: Well Ron what I see here as to 185-38-C-2 which must meet minimum lot requirements which I think means all of the things you just said. Without just being simply 40,000 sq. ft. which I see is all they have on the chart but the way I…unless someone understand that differently and unfortunately Mr. Canfield is not here this evening but minimum lot requirements to me would be the minimum Bulk Requirements applicable in the zoning district which would mean all those other items that you've gone through. 

Mr. Hughes: Right. Subsequent to that, for what you're looking for with the number of bedrooms and all of that and not knowing where the well and the septic or the off street parking that's required per dwelling unit and just the fact that you're diagram that you sent for the Board to review shows the drive that you use going over some other property I'd be concerned about ruling on this in any respect because there's just so many things wrong here I can't imagine. And you said you're only here two months out of the year to live in it. One of the main requirements is that you're a full time owner/occupant in order for an accessory apartment to be issued. I'll stop there and see what the rest of the Board Members might have to say but I don't think you belong here. I think, first of all you have over 700 sq. ft., which requires another review from the Planning Board, and not from us and the chicken or the egg…I wouldn't give a variance until we check with their attorney and or the Town attorney to see how you got to this point. I don't think you should be in front of this Board. I think you either be in front of the Planning Board or something else going on here. I don't think we can even rule on this. 

Chairperson Cardone: What is the square footage of the accessory apartment?

Mr. Diemer: Less than 700.

Mr. Donovan: Exactly what is it? 

Mr. Diemer: I don't know. He's got the plans there. 

Mr. Donovan: Well it's your application, so... 

Mr. Hughes: It says 800 feet.

Mr. Diemer: I really don't have it on me to tell you the truth.

Mr. McKelvey: It says 800 sq.ft.

Mr. Hughes: It says 800 sq. ft. We're going by what you gave us. We've all been out to the property. We've looked at the properties next door and the entire neighborhood. It's not like anybody just reads the papers. 

Mr. Diemer: Well I think without…I think without the…the…a…utility room it's less than 700 sq. ft. I think if you count the utility room its…as living space…then its over 700 sq. ft.

Mr. Hughes: Well that's just one other item of about…

Mr. McKelvey: I think you've hit the spot though he's only going to be there two months out of the year. He's got to be there full time.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. 

Mr. Diemer: Well that is full time when I'm home isn't it?

Mr. McKelvey: Full time would be the whole year by somebody else's living in there.

Mr. Diemer: Well if I get deployed I can't fight the deployment. I've got to go overseas so would that be the case if I…

Chairperson Cardone: Would that be your permanent address?

Mr. Diemer: Yes, yes maam. 

Chairperson Cardone: But at this time it's not your permanent address? Correct?

Mr. Diemer: Well I'm leaving Sunday. So…you…you…I mean it is my permanent…that's where my mail goes, that's where everything goes but while I'm home I just stay at my fathers until I can get this resolved.

Mr. Donovan: Let me ask you, what's in the house now?

Mr. Diemer: In the apartment…accessory?  

Mr. Donovan: In the whole house. 

Mr. Diemer: Two girls upstairs.

Mr. Donovan: I'm sorry, say again.

Mr. Diemer: Two women live upstairs.

Mr. Donovan: Two renters? 

Mr. Diemer: Yes. Two girls.

Mr. Donovan: And who is downstairs?

Mr. Diemer: No one.

Mr. Donovan: Was there anyone downstairs before?

Mr. Diemer: No. (Inaudible)

Mr. Manley: How did you get to this point where you're before this Board? What prompted you to come before this Board for a variance?

Mr. Diemer: I was told I had to. I had a letter said I had to come and get a variance to complete the job.

Mr. Manley: O.K. But what actually prompted that though. 

Mr. Diemer: I don't know. A complaint.

Mr. Hughes: Were you building without a Permit and they caught up with you?

Mr. Diemer: A building complaint. 

Mr. Manley: O.K. 

Mr. Diemer: I don't know. I don't know from…(Inaudible)

Mr. Manley: O.K. But you actually constructed it without a Permit?

Mr. Diemer: Yeah, they…they…they did do work without a Permit.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: Who is they? Is that you or someone else?

Mr. Diemer: No, some one else while I was overseas. 

Chairperson Cardone: But you were the owner when it happened?

Mr. Diemer: (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. Could you speak into the microphone so that we can hear you? It's being recorded.

Mr. Diemer: Yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Yes, would you please use the microphone? State your name and address.

Ms. Post-Auerbach: Teddi Ann Post-Auerbach, 764 Gardnertown Road. I have several…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you just pull the microphone a little bit closer? Thank you.

Ms. Post-Auerbach: O.K. Sorry. I have several concerns because like he did state this was done without a Building Permit. I had to go through that process, the Building Permit, when I did my home. There are ladies living upstairs like he stated. And if there should be a fire downstairs since none of this was inspected what about those people that are living up there? There was an oil tank that was originally inside the basement that somehow now is outside underneath the covered porch. I couldn't put mine outside. The other thing is the septic tank. Prior to this gentleman buying it I called the Town and complained because children were playing in that backyard, the lid caved in and to the best to my knowledge that's the original steel tank that Mr. and Mrs. Lot put on that property in 1974 so is that capable to hold waste from the new conversion to this house?

Chairperson Cardone: I think that is one of the concerns of the Board.

Mr. Diemer: (Inaudible)

Ms. Post-Auerbach: And then the other issue is who wired it? Who is going to go in there and inspect this? There was never…

Mr. Diemer: (Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me all remarks have to be directed to the Board. Go ahead.

Mr. Diemer: (Inaudible)

Ms. Post-Auerbach: …to the best of my knowledge, I'll correct myself. Was it inspected? I had to have all my wiring and everything inspected, my plumbing, everything else had to be inspected in my house. And then the other issue, which you did cover, was the issue of the property size.

Chairperson Cardone: The driveway is on whose property? 

Mr. Diemer: I don't know the man's name…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. Could you speak into the microphone? Thanks.

Mr. Diemer: I don't know the gentleman's name but it’s a permanent easement of 50 feet. So the driveway was there I didn't put it there…

Chairperson Cardone: You have an easement for that?

Mr. Diemer: Yes, I didn't put the driveway.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Maher: How long have you owned the house?

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. I'm sorry. This is being recorded.

Mr. Diemer: I think I bought it in the end of '06 maybe early '07. I'm not…I'm not…  

Mr. Maher: Have you ever lived there at all? Or I mean…so you haven't?

Mr. Diemer: I've been over…I've home very rare for the last three years so I…

Mr. Maher: O.K. So, I mean, the people that live upstairs now the renters that you have, have they lived there the entire time, or…?

Ms. Gennarelli: Mr. Diemer could you please answer with a word? This is being recorded.

Mr. Diemer: Yes, maam.  

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you. 

Mr. Diemer: Yes, maam. Yes sir, they have lived there since I've owned it. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Did you have anything else?

Ms. Post-Auerbach: Yes, the letter that we received…

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. If you could just pick up the microphone? It has to go into the recording.

Ms. Post-Auerbach: The letter that was sent it says requirements to keep a prior built accessory apartment. I've lived next door to that house since it was built there; there has never been an accessory apartment there so how can it state that? That was put in recently.

Mr. Diemer: May I?

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Diemer: So, I said accessory apartment that's not my verbiage that's their verbiage so talk to them. That's not my verbiage.

Ms. Post-Auerbach: It's signed by you though.

Mr. Diemer: It's not my verbiage.

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me, direct it…O.K. So you did apply…

Mr. Diemer: The only thing that was down there was…

Mr. Donovan: No, if I can…the prior built is just a phrase that is used by the Building Department to mean that it was built without a Permit.

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Please use the microphone. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Did you have anything else?

Ms. Post-Auerbach: No, nothing.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. McKelvey: I have another question. How big is the septic tank? How many bedrooms?

Mr. Diemer: It's three-bedrooms.

Mr. McKelvey: Upstairs and down?

Mr. Diemer: No, no total.

Mr. McKelvey: Total? How big is the…

Mr. Diemer: The tank, I don't know but I'm going to change the tank with a 1200 gallon tank anyway because like she stated, it is a metal tank and I did put a different lid on it because the one that was there was somewhat rotted but I don't. But I don't know that the tank itself is rotted but I'm assuming if the lid rotted the tank may be on its way out too. So I had plans to change that to a 1200-gallon plastic tank anyway.

Mr. Manley: So just for the record there's two bedrooms upstairs and one bedroom downstairs for a total of three?

Mr. Diemer: That's right.

Chairperson Cardone: And as I looked at the house I only saw one door that could be used for an exit.

Mr. Diemer: That's correct. 

Chairperson Cardone: And my concern was…

Mr. Diemer:  And a window in the bedroom, according to the code…that the code book that I got from you its anything under 700 sq. ft. which living space is what the book clearly states, living space so you can rule out the mechanical room, it's under 700 sq.ft. and for the…I need…I would if…if I was to be able to do this I know I'd have to change the front window in the bedroom because its too small.

Chairperson Cardone: Because no one could get out that window.

Mr. Diemer: Its too…that's what I'm clearly stating maam because I know the window would have to be changed.   

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anything else from the Board?

Ms. Eaton: Doesn't that utility room have to be  protected…

Mr. Diemer: 5/8 fire rated sheet and a metal fire rated door.

Ms. Eaton: And would there be access to the upstairs apartment from the downstairs?

Mr. Diemer: That's right with a fire rated door also.

Mr. Maher: I think unfortunately whether you want to consider the utility room finished living area its going to be considered regardless because of the fact that there's a washer and dryer is in there in…

Mr. Diemer: No washer and dryer. No washer and dryer. 

Mr. Maher: But it is a sheet rocked finished room, correct? I mean, it's not open stud wall?

Mr. Diemer: Well I had it sheet rocked with fire rated sheet rock.

Mr. Maher: So, let me ask you a question, so where the furnace shows here is there a door there between that the small room in the corner there? Or is that just one big open area? 

Mr. Diemer: Is there a door…a?

Mr. Maher: You showed, in the diagram you have a doorway there…?

Mr. Diemer: No, no, no, no that was…I don't know what that door is? (Inaudible)

Mr. Maher: So basically its one big room…

Chairperson Cardone: Please use the…you can take the microphone off and just carry it with you.

Ms. Drake: So what you are saying is that washer and dryer shouldn't be there and the wall that's showing shouldn't be there either?

Mr. Diemer: No, the washer and dryer I was going to have a washer and dryer hookup and when I first started talking to the Town there was no way that was going to get approval. That's what they told me flat out over here this building next door. So I just dx'd the whole idea, there's no plumbing to it, there's nothing, there's wall that…the original stud walls that were there I just sheet rocked with 5/8 fire retardant sheetrock and put a fire rated door there.

Mr. Hughes: There's another requirement here that hasn't been addressed that's a very important issue. If you go to C under standards number 4, adequate water supply and sewage disposal facilities are available by a certified New York State licensed professional engineer except such certification that's not required if the building is connected to municipal water and sewer.

Mr. Diemer: What codes are you reading there, Ron? Are you reading for an apartment or an accessory apartment?

Chairperson Cardone: Accessory apartment.

Mr. Hughes: I'm reading for it all.

Mr. Diemer: For it all? 

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Diemer: But they're not the same are they?  

Mr. Hughes: If you read it for…

Mr. Donovan: Well you're here under 185-38, that's under 185-38.

Chairperson Cardone: And that's under there.

Mr. Donovan: Subdivision C-4.

Mr. Diemer: O.K. And Mr. Donovan, what does that mean? I don't know what 185-C means at all.

Mr. Donovan: Well that's your application so, what it says is you don't have water and sewer, correct?

Mr. Diemer: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. So what, in order to have an accessory apartment you need a certification from a licensed professional engineer that your water supply and sewage disposal facilities are adequate.

Mr. Diemer: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: What I was getting to before you start going to look and dunking tanks in the ground, you're going to have to come before the Building Department with an approved plan by a licensed professional for the three-bedroom use and with a perk test to determine what kind of leech field you're going to need, the tank and so forth. You can have this if you want, it might help you. (Offering Mr. Diemer a copy of the requirements)

Mr. Diemer: I don't want it. I'll get one.

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing else at this point.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anything else from any Board Members or…? Yes, please take the microphone and state your name and address. 

Mr. Cheesman: Gregg Cheesman, 764 Gardnertown Road. The issue was like Ron was saying about the septic. It's got to be 1250 and I believe according to code its got to be 250 feet of leech field and it also has to be 100 feet away from the well. Because when we had to go for our variances when we built our new home that's what it had to be. And another issue is the oil tank outside. We couldn't put ours outside. It's just sitting there on four pegs and its supposed to be all enclosed in and the DEC is supposed to monitor it because I did call when we were building our home. And we couldn't do it so our tank is in the garage. 

Chairperson Cardone: And that would have to be brought to the attention of the Building Department.

Mr. Cheesman: Yes. O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Cheesman: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Is there anything else? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:20 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 25, 2009             (Resumption for decision: 8:40 PM) 



DAVID DIEMER



762 GARDNERTOWN ROAD, NBGH







(51-9-4.21) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the minimum lot area requirement to keep a prior built accessory apartment. 

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On the application of David Diemer, 762 Gardnertown Road, seeking an area variance for the minimum lot area requirement to keep a prior built accessory apartment. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Hughes: I think we had enough pertinent discussion about this already. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval on this application? 

(No response) 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for disapproval on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion for disapproval is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY







DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 8:41 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 25, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:21 PM) 



THOMAS & DANINE GIORGIANNI
1 MACE CIRCLE, NBGH







(51-5-14) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to build an accessory structure (10 x 20' shed) closer than required 5 feet from the property line.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Thomas and Danine Giorgianni               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, June 16th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday June 17th. The applicant sent out nineteen registered letters, nineteen were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Mr. Giorgianni: Good evening, Madam Chairman, Board, I'm Tom Giorgianni; I live at 1 Mace Circle. I'm here tonight requesting an area variance for building an accessory structure closer than five feet of the requirement distance to the property line. The proposed location, you should have received the map, is in the rear of my property. Behind the property line is a drainage ditch and vegetation such that a storage shed would not be seen from O'Dell Circle, which would be the opposite end. In addition, by granting my request the shed would become more inconspicuous. This would create a more desirable view for the neighborhood. The primary reason for requesting the area variance is to place the front of the shed inline with the existing fence in the rear of my yard. Without this variance, the shed would protrude into the play area of the yard causing a safety issue for my children. And I would like the front of the shed be in line with the fence to reduce any issues that could be created. Thus I am respectfully requesting an area variance to place a storage shed closer than the five feet required. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Do we have any questions from the Board?  

Mr. Maher: The existing shed there or whatever is back there is that on your property or the neighbor's property?

Mr. Giorgianni: The yellow one that is not my property that is not my shed. That is off my property. If you…I submitted some pictures…if you looked at the pictures from where the fence line is, if you saw like a pile of brush the shed would actually be before that pile of brush. That pile of brush is actually my neighbor that kind of goes is, back there. 

Chairperson Cardone: If I'm not mistaken there was an opening in the fence?

Mr. Giorgianni: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: But its not going to…its going to be over further like if facing the fence its going to be more over to the right of where that opening is, correct? 

Mr. Giorgianni: The opening in the back of the fence?

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Giorgianni: It would be in that open area.

Chairperson Cardone: Oh, O.K.

Mr. Giorgianni: And then the fence would be, where the two post are, I remove the fence and that fence would then be adjoined to the building. So there would be no opening.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? 

Ms. Eaton: Will this be on a concrete slab?

Mr. Giorgianni: No, it’s a prefab; they just kind of drop it. I'll probably just put gravel stone down to protect it. And several of my neighbors have given me letters stating that they're in support of the variance; Gil and Roseanne Piaquadio, Donald DuBois, Joe Dileo and Alan and Diana Rau. 

Mr. Giorgianni approached the Board with the letters.

Chairperson Cardone: I do have another one from Stephan Petroff. I'll read these into the record. From Mr. and Mrs. Piaquadio, I am in support of Mr. and Mrs. Giorgiani's request for an area variance for building an accessory structure closer than the five feet required distance. And we have the same written by Donald DuBois, and Alan and Diana Rau and Joe Dileo. I also have another: I have no objection to these plans, from Stephan Petroff. Do we have any additional questions or comments from the public? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Mr. Hughes: So moved. 

Mr. Maher: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: Before we do a vote, I just want to read into the record the recommendation from the Orange County Department of Planning is: Local Determination. 
Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:25 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 25, 2009             (Resumption for decision: 8:41 PM) 



THOMAS & DANINE GIORGIANNI
1 MACE CIRCLE, NBGH







(51-5-14) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to build an accessory structure (10 x 20' shed) closer than required 5 feet from the property line.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Thomas and Danine Giorgianni, 1 Mace Circle, seeking an area variance to build an accessory structure closer than the required 5 feet from the property line. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Manley: The applicant has gone through the additional procedure of contacting the DEC and they don't appear to have any issue with it being in that particular area. It seems to be, you know, in an area of the property that's kind of away from everything.  

Mr. Hughes: I'll move for approval.

Ms. Eaton: I'll second.  

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY







DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 8:42 PM)
ZBA MEETING – JUNE 25, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:25 PM) 



EUGENE & CAROL BONFIGLIO

101 COLDEN HILL ROAD, NBGH







(47-1-5.9) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yards setbacks to keep a prior built rear deck. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Eugene & Carol Bonfiglio               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, June 16th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday June 17th. The applicant sent out twelve registered letters, twelve were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Mr. Bonfiglio: My name is Eugene Bonfiglio; I reside at 101 Colden Hill Road in the Town of Newburgh. Twenty-two years ago we built a deck onto the back of an existing deck that had failed. That existing deck had been built with the house. We claim ignorance. We didn't realize we needed a Permit at the time and never got a Permit for it. And at the time I believe the Code said we could be 15 feet from the property line and today's Code says it has to be 30 feet and we were told that we needed to get a variance for that extra distance.

Mr. McKelvey:  Are you selling the property?

Mr. Bonfiglio: Excuse me? Yes we are.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes, I saw the sign out there.

Mr. Bonfiglio: Yeah, we are moving to Colorado, John.

Chairperson Cardone: The report from the Orange County Department of Planning is Local Determination. Any questions or comments from the Board? 

Ms. Drake: How long ago was the deck constructed?

Mr. Bonfiglio: Twenty-two years ago. 1987. 

Mr. McKelvey: Without a Permit?

Mr. Bonfiglio: Excuse me?

Mr. McKelvey: Without a Permit?

Mr. Bonfiglio: Without a Permit. Like I said, the original deck failed that came with the house and so we were replacing the deck and when we were replacing the deck we decided to make it larger and didn't realize we needed a Permit to do that. 

Mr. Donovan: When you say make it larger, just to clear it up for my own benefit, you said we were going to replace an existing deck that had failed and in the process we decided to add an additional deck. Is that just an addition?

Mr. Bonfiglio: An addition on to that deck.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. So how much bigger from the original deck is the new deck?

Mr. Bonfiglio: The original deck was 8 x 20 I believe and we added 12 x 17 on to it. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Bonfiglio: We did get a professional engineer to certify the deck however there are some other concerns that the Building Inspectors have and we are addressing them with an architect from local.

Mr. Manley: What architect are you using?

Mr. Bonfiglio: Linda Zwart.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? If so, please state your name and address. Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:30 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 25, 2009             (Resumption for decision: 8:42 PM) 



EUGENE & CAROL BONFIGLIO

101 COLDEN HILL ROAD, NBGH







(47-1-5.9) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yards setbacks to keep a prior built rear deck. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Eugene & Carol Bonfiglio, 101 Colden Hill Road, seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yards setbacks to keep a prior built rear deck. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: It's a good-looking deck. It's been there for a few years.

Chairperson Cardone: Twenty-two.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we approve.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY







DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 8:42 PM)
ZBA MEETING – JUNE 25, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:30 PM) 



DAVID & TRICIA JOLLY  


22 MAINE DRIVE, NBGH







(105-8-10) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the rear yard setback to build a rear deck on residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant David Jolly               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, June 16th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday June 17th. The applicant sent out thirty-two registered letters, thirty were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Mr. Jolly: Good evening my name is David Jolly. I reside at 22 Maine Drive with my wife Tricia. We are here tonight to seek an area variance to increase the degree of non-conformity of the rear yard setback to build a rear deck on the residence. The deck we are proposing to build will…the current deck is 8 x 12 and we are requesting a variance to build an 8 x 20 deck. 

Ms. Drake: The existing 30 ft that you currently have you are not changing that with that new addition correct?

Mr. Jolly: No we're not going any closer to the property line. We're going down the length of the house essentially.

Chairperson Cardone: Which actually makes you further away from the property line.

Mr. Jolly: Right, technically, further away.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board?  Any questions or comments from the public? If so, please state your name and address. 

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

(Time Noted – 7:32 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 25, 2009             (Resumption for decision: 8:43 PM) 



DAVID & TRICIA JOLLY  


22 MAINE DRIVE, NBGH







(105-8-10) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the rear yard setback to build a rear deck on residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of David and Tricia Jolly, 22 Maine Drive, seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the rear yard setback to build a rear deck on residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Maher: I don't believe it protrudes any further into the backyard. That being said, I'll make a motion for approval. 

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY







DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 8:44 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 25, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:32 PM) 



TOM & ELAINE KEEFER


54 PROSPECT HILL ROAD, WALLKILL







(1-1-70) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yards setbacks to build a 30' x 26' 2-story addition on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Tom and Elaine Keefer              

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, June 16th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday June 17th. The applicant sent out eighteen registered letters, sixteen were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Mr. Keefer: Good evening, Tom Keefer, 54 Prospect Hill Road, I'm requesting an area variance to reduce one of my side yards setbacks. 

Chairperson Cardone: After the completion, how many garages will you have? I see right now there are three garages there.

Mr. Keefer: Yes, it's a two-family house. There's two garages on the left-hand side of the house, which I use, but it's technically for the tenants I use just for storage. And down below where we used to have our two-car garage I had converted that to a family room a few years back. So, I have one door that's going to get closed off that garage that you see down on my side that'll get closed off just with block and use the new two-car garage.  

Chairperson Cardone: And then you'll be adding a two-car garage so you'll have a four-car garage?

Mr. Keefer: Right, just like the way I started.

Mr. Maher: The access to the garage in the front or the side?

Mr. Keefer: In the front.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a C.O. for the work that was done in the basement? 

Mr. Keefer: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: And the office that's described there, do you run a business out of the home?

Mr. Keefer: No, I store my stuff there. I'm a contractor. 

Mr. Hughes: Your personal…you're a contractor.

Mr. Keefer: Yeah, I have a lot of stuff to store.

Mr. Hughes: So the office isn't personal? It's for your business?

Mr. Keefer: The office is…no, its personal, it's not for my business. It's like we have a computer in our kitchen. We have a computer down in the family room so if we get that…we have four kids so if we can get them all in one space kind of it frees up a little bit more for us. We could use the space.

Chairperson Cardone: And you're not looking to put an apartment in that new addition?

Mr. Keefer: No, the only thing that…the bathroom that's going in there, I'm taking out a bathroom which will be my entrance into the new addition, that's a half bathroom and the new one will be a full bathroom.

Ms. Drake: Are you increasing the number of bedrooms?

Mr. Keefer: No. 

Mr. Hughes: Are you on Town water there?

Mr. Keefer: No. Well.

Mr. Hughes: You just have a well.

Mr. Keefer: Yes.

Mr. Manley: How many square feet are you adding to the house?

Mr. Keefer: 30 x 26 would be the living space; the garage would be 30 x 24. 

Mr. Manley: So 30 x 26 is going to be the living area? 

Mr. Keefer: Yes sir.

Mr. Manley: And then the 30 x 24 is the garage?

Mr. Keefer: Yes sir.

Mr. Manley: And how many square feet do you currently have…of living area? 

Mr. Keefer: It's a modular house and our part of it is 30 x 23 and that's two and a half levels so 612 maybe 17.

Mr. Manley: And it's two-family, right?

Mr. Keefer: Yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: It's listed with the Town as a two-family house?

Mr. Keefer: Yes, yes, built in 1987.

Mr. Hughes: Separate electric meters and all?

Mr. Keefer: Separate. Two separate septics, everything.

Mr. McKelvey: You say the rooms above the garage are not going to be bedrooms?

Mr. Keefer: There not going to be bedrooms just overflow for our family.

Chairperson Cardone: Does anyone in the public have any questions or comments? Anything further from the Board? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Mr. Keefer: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: And the report from Orange County is Local Determination. 
Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

(Time Noted – 7:37 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 25, 2009             (Resumption for decision: 8:44 PM) 



TOM & ELAINE KEEFER


54 PROSPECT HILL ROAD, WALLKILL







(1-1-70) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yards setbacks to build a 30' x 26' 2-story addition on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Tom and Elaine Keefer, 54 Prospect Hill Road, seeking an area variance for the side yards setbacks to build a 30' x 46' 2-story addition on the residence.

Mr. Hughes: 26.

Mr. Donovan: I believe its 26.

Ms. Gennarelli: 26.

Chairperson Cardone: 26, 30 x 26'. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion to approve the application. 

Mr. Maher: Second.

Mr. Hughes: Discussion. Is this the one that was a…had a situation about the septic?

Mr. Donovan: No.

Mr. Manley: No. That was the last one.

Chairperson Cardone: Two story addition.

Ms. Drake: No increase in the number of bedrooms. 

Mr. Hughes: No increase. O.K. 

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY







DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 9:45 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 25, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:37 PM) 



ANDREW MASSIMILIAN


8 WEST STONE STREET, NBGH







(84-5-6.1) R-3/O

Applicant is seeking area variances for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the rear lot line setback, the side yard setback and the maximum height of an accessory structure (garage) to reconstruct an accessory building.

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Andrew Massimilian.              

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, June 16th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday June 17th. The applicant sent out forty-six registered letters, thirty-one were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Identify yourself please.

Mr. Massimilian: Yes, my name is Andrew Massimilian. I'm here to request a area variance to renovated a garage on my house. 

Mr. Maher: Do you reside in the house?

Mr. Massimilian: Yes sir. I'm renovating it. By the way it’s a two-family I'm living in the top floor now. 

Chairperson Cardone: What was the original height of garage?

Mr. Massimilian: The original height is to the front part of the garage you can see it on this picture its still actually standing there. Its this brick thing is approximately what would be about between 8 and 9 feet higher so it would be around 19 feet or so, the top.

Chairperson Cardone: And what is the reason for going up 30 feet?  

Mr. Massimilian: Well its actually just adding on, it's to make the top floor space usable. It's adding on approximately 10 ½ feet to the existing. Already is, the height of the garage existing is around a…around 19 feet and its just adding on space above that amount.

Mr. McKelvey: What are you going to use in the space?

Mr. Massimilian: I'm sorry?

Mr. McKelvey: What are you going to use in the space above?

Mr. Massimilian: Well its storage actually at this point.

Mr. McKelvey: And you say you're not going to have anybody living in it?

Mr. Massimilian: No, no that wouldn't be possible for a number of reasons.

Ms. Eaton: Is there electricity and plumbing out to this?

Mr. Massimilian: Well there's electric but its non, it's not working, there's really no plumbing there either.

Mr. Manley: Is it my understanding that the rear setback and the side yard setback is 2 inches to the side yard, 6 inches to the rear yard? That's the existing structure?

Mr. Massimilian: That is true sir. If you consult the survey you could tell that this was originally built right on the property line, this garage, it’s a fairly large garage, goes back a fair amount. It was built in the 20's and it was built on, effectively on the property line.

Mr. Maher: You say that, in the application that you were going to only for a section of the building 360 sq. ft. or so of the building this roof will be raised? 

Mr. Massimilian: Right there's two parts of the garage. A forward part, which is subject to this variance and a rear part, which is longer.

Mr. Maher: Right, now but in your application, the plans you submitted show the entire elevation of the garage being…or the entire roof line being raised to the same as the front?

Mr. Massimilian: A…no sir, I don't…then that must have been a mistake. It's really just the front part. The architect has shown in a side elevation, this is only the front part the garage here it's not the rear part. The rear part already has a roof that there's no problem with that. It's really the front part of the garage that was higher initially.

Mr. Donovan: When you say a portion of the garage can you quantify that for us? Is it…it's going to be 28 feet from what portion or what distance?

Mr. Massimilian: Well 28 feet is the height and…

Mr. Donovan: Correct but as I understand it the entire garage is not going to be 28 feet high.

Mr. Massimilian: That's correct. 

Mr. Donovan: So what portion is going to be 28 feet high?

Mr. Massimilian: As a percentage approximately a quarter, approximately a quarter of the length of it.

Mr. Donovan: And the rest of it will be that 19 plus or minus figure?

Mr. Massimilian: Right, the existing. Right that's correct, the back part of the garage, which already has a roof on it.

Mr. Maher: So currently this garage is 22 x 68, 68 in length, correct?

Mr. Massimilian: Yes sir.

Mr. Maher: O.K. so if its going to be 300 sq.ft. that's roughly 15 feet or a little less than 25% of the length of it?

Mr. Massimilian: It's probably a little bit longer than…it’s a little bit more than 300 sq. ft. then. It goes back…at the…at the part that we're talking about is maybe about 20 ft. back.

so its 21, 22.

Mr. Maher: So, I mean, looking at the elevation you have there the side view is significantly larger than 20 ft longer so. The dormer alone looking at that dormer its probably 15 feet or at least 12 anyway so if that's the case this is roughly 36 feet in length as far as what the picture depicts that you submitted. 

Mr. Massimilian: O.K. I may be mistaken on those measurements that I quoted but it’s a small amount relative on a square footage basis.

Mr. Maher: Well, I mean, if 36 ft length, 22 wide you're looking at 700 sq. ft. or so rather than the 300.

Mr. Massimilian: I don't believe its 700 sq. ft. I don't…I wish I had this to scale but I'm pretty sure its not that big.

Mr. Donovan: Well our problem is…

Mr. Massimilian: Because we've taken measurement.   

Mr. Donovan: …we can only go by the plans you've submitted.  

Mr. Massimilian: Right, right I understand. 

Chairperson Cardone: There is a scale here.

Mr. Maher: I don't have a scale with me though. 

Mr. Donovan: Maybe Ron could…

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a ruler maybe I can scale it out.

Chairperson Cardone: If we had a ruler we could.

Mr. Massimilian: These are architect prepared, by the way, they are…they are prepared by an architect. 

Mr. Manley: What would necessitate on the front there to have that front porch on a garage like that, you know the a…on the second floor?

Mr. Massimilian: Well that's a visual, the existing garage had that currently if you look at one of the pictures, its obviously in disrepair but the front of the garage has that porch right there already. Its just to be consistent with that and let light in. It's to make it look more attractive.

Chairperson Cardone: And the current building is structurally sound? 

Mr. Massimilian: Yes it is. I mean, she…the architect, of course, would be doing whatever tests are necessary to provide stamped plans to the Building Department but…

Mr. Manley: What necessitated you to come to this Board? Did you receive a Permit? Were you denied a Permit? Or was it constructed without a Permit?

Mr. Massimilian: O.K. It…I hired a contractor who basically told me that one; it was within the existing footprint it didn't need a Permit. Then we found out it needed a Permit and said, I'll take care of the Permits and it turns out that he didn't have liability insurance. Partially constructed, the materials are on-site as you probably saw and then when I told him, you know, I'm going to bring him to court for this he fled to Pennsylvania, so I'm stuck with basically, you know a half complete building at this time and you know, obviously an Order to Remedy and the whole point of this actually is to help renovate this house. The house is…is…it's I've owned it for a while. I've been struggling to renovate it for one thing or another and I'm paying a lot on a mortgage on it and its about to be given back to the bank and I don't want to do that. I've put a lot of money into it; a lot of time in trying to renovate the property and this would improve the area significantly. I know it seems like it may appear like a big request for that higher roof but from the street line first of all it doesn't…since the garage is set back it has trees and so forth around it and its lower in grade you really don't see it much from the street plus its not really higher than any of the houses that around there and architecturally it fits in. Very pleasing, obviously it’s a very pleasing look to it. 

Mr. Hughes: Sir, did you say you were living there?

Mr. Massimilian: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: But didn't you also say there's no water on in the place?

Mr. Massimilian: That's correct. I…I go to a friend of my for sho…I stay there over night that's what I'm saying when I'm there. 

Mr. Hughes: And is this the place where there's big deuce and a half military vehicles in the driveway with camouflage paint?

Mr. Massimilian: Yes, that's where…the…the…it has the…it contains…

Mr. Hughes: And are you the contiguous property owner of each side of that mess as well?

Mr. Massimilian: I'm on one side of it.   

Mr. Hughes: You don't own both properties on either side?

Mr. Massimilian: The other side is owned by Emilio Zapata.

Mr. Hughes: Is where the trailer and the junk trucks and all that yours as well?

Mr. Massimilian: The trailer's not mine. That area is mine, yes, that lot. I bought it from a tax sale when it came up several years ago and I…until the sewer is approved I can't do anything with that lot.

Mr. Hughes: You'll have a beard like mine before that sewer is in there.

Mr. Massimilian: I was told today that they are trying to get it done this year.

Mr. Hughes: They're trying to reduce taxes too.

Mr. Massimilian: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: I was out there and I'm sure the other Board Members were out there as well. I just…the whole thing is crazy. You've got the buildings that you're talking about that you're looking for relief on and yet you own a property right next door why not go out instead of up and look at it in a different way instead of asking for this request? Now Middlehope Fire, I didn't see anything from them and I don't know how they would feel about going down West Stone Street at any hour of the day and trying to fight a fire in this building that you're talking about that's probably 60 feet back from the road with no way to get in to it. Around the back you are landlocked, you've got the wall from 84, I mean I did some extensive research around there and took a walk around the back and all sides.

Mr. Massimilian: Well we're not…first of all I respectfully correct you, the Fire Department can get hoses down that far if they had to and first…and it is an existing garage, there are other garages in the neighborhood that are that far down…

Mr. Hughes: I am very familiar with the neighborhood.

Mr. Massimilian: Secondly there is access behind 84.

Mr. Hughes: How is that?

Mr. Massimilian: If you go down, it's right on the map if you go down right to the end of where Beeb's Restaurant, if you go down there you can drive around and access the property. 

Mr. Hughes: On someone else's property. 

Mr. Massimilian: No, on my property. 

Mr. Hughes: I don't know that you have deeded access to there. I did the research on this and I was told that Mr. Finkelstein owns that property right up to your contiguous property and that there is no right of way.

Mr. Massimilian: Well the…the actual…the actual road cut according to the property line goes down but I'm not sure how that's relevant to this because my request here is to help this garage and help this property, help renovate.

Mr. Hughes: We understand the nature of your request.

Mr. Massimilian: It's not much in terms of square footage. It's not that much additional height. And there's a considerable hardship because its been…if I can't do it its probably going to go back to the bank and is certainly not going to improve the situation if you're concerned about the look of the house and everything else which obviously its you could tell how much more money I have to put into the house.

Mr. Maher: Well you say…

Chairperson Cardone: Actually it is considerable its 87% over.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Massimilian: Well that actually is 80% over the original that's not 80% over the existing roofline.

Chairperson Cardone: Right but the allotted is 15 and you're looking for 28.

Mr. Massimilian: Yes, that's correct but what's existing right now and what I understand, you know, is you could rebuild to it is about 20.

Mr. Maher: How will granting the variance increasing the garage enable you to forego foreclosure on the residence itself? I don't understand.

Mr. Massimilian: With two reasons, one, I can get it refinanced. It has an 8% mortgage on it right now. I can lower the payment on it and stay solvent.

Mr. Maher: If the garage is finished?

Mr. Massimilian: Yeah, because right now it is a Building Code Violation, no one, lenders not going to lend on it plus the appraiser won't do it. Secondly is I have an interested buyer who if its finished they can take it off my hands if I can't get this done. 

Mr. Maher: Like I said, you know, basic calculations you're 300 sq. ft. that you stated is in actuality closer to 570 sq. ft. of finished area according to the plans you submitted, so.

Mr. Massimilian: O.K.

Mr. Maher: Obviously… 

Mr. Massimilian: I'll defer to the plan then because that's probably correct.

Mr. Maher: The concern obviously is always that it'll be finished upstairs and become an apartment, obviously. Based on the façade you're putting there it seems quite excessive for that of just storage area.

Mr. Massimilian: Well it's consistent with a nicer look, I mean.

Mr. Maher: Oh, no I understand that. It's not unusual…

Mr. Massimilian: If you wanted me to make it less nice I could do that but I gave, you know, Linda Swart is my architect I told her that to make it look nice would be actually I thought that would be more amenable for the Board. I mean there is like I said there's no…its on a septic system. There's not separate water or anything to that unit so sneaking an accessory apartment there may not be possible.

Mr. Maher: No, I understand but like I said you have an interested buyer also so I mean it becomes…

Mr. Massimilian: Right.

Mr. Maher: …something of a possibility down the road.

Mr. Massimilian: Well clearly I mean it is a big structure if you can count the back, I mean it is a usable structure. I think it is a selling point but you know, they would have to go through all the…then…since there is no sewer in the neighborhood it wouldn't even be allowed anyhow. 

Mr. Maher: Being allowed and being constructed are two different things.

Mr. Massimilian: Well right, right, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: The report from the Orange County Department of Planning is Local Determination. Do we have any comments or questions from the public? Yes, would you stand to the microphone and state your name and address?

Ms. Pearl: Christine Pearl, I own the home at 12 West Stone Street, right next door. Just…I'm all for neighborhood enhancement down there. There's a lot of homes that need a lot of work. I don't understand how doing this as enhancing everything. It's so far set back and if it has no, if I heard correctly, no electric, no septic then what is it enhancing? You know, it seems to me that you can refurbish something without going for all the variances. Correct?

Mr. Hughes: If there is another way to do it.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a professional design considering any sort of a septic system? If you own that property only, that you're telling us, where would you intend on putting the septic system? Or are you focused on connecting to the sewer?

Ms. Gennarelli: I'm sorry, could you speak into the mic? Thank you.

Mr. Massimilian: There's an existing septic system for the house and the sewer connection would allow me to take care of that abandoned property in the back. That, you know, that I bought from a tax sale because the kids were destroying it. That's what I meant by the sewer connection. Also everybody's septic is old there. Obviously we would want, I don't know, how Ms. Pearl feels about it but I would assume most of the neighborhood supports having the sewer there for the neighborhood. With respect to improving it, listen the a…you know, this job is practically done here, I mean, I think enhances the neighborhood because it basically will get it will help get the entire property renovated and that would enhance your property value not having that eyesore back there that you most accurately mentioned. You know, I've had it for a number of years, you know, I paid a very high mortgage on it. My intent is to fix it up and I've been putting money into it and this would help get me by that. But if I don't get that I can't afford to pay a contractor to rip it down and rebuild it to an existing height. Particularly when I have all the materials and I've already spent a considerable amount getting it in a partially finished state where it doesn't, you know, it needs more work but a lot of it, the biggest, the bulk of the work the roofline has been put up already. So I do…I would say that if it helps the neighborhood because you don't have a house that is half vacant with a garage that is dilapidated because of this front roof area. I'd also get rid of the trucks there because that has the building material in it. 

Mr. Hughes: Are they your trucks?

Mr. Massimilian: Yes sir. Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Maybe I was at the wrong property, where is this place that you said is almost finished?  

Mr. Massimilian: I'm not following you.

Mr. Hughes: You just said, about four sentences ago, that you're almost complete and that you…

Mr. Massimilian: No, I said that the framing and the bulk of the difficult work on the garage is nearly completed and I'm saying that to say that if the Board said, you've got to take it all down, you…you…I would basically have to pay a lot more to have it taken down and then rebuild to make it, you know, conform with the existing height which is non-conforming. So, we're really talking about just adding a little bit height here and in exchange we get a property that's going to be renovated that won't have this visual to it that'll improve the neighborhood just for the standpoint of the houses, you know, the whole thing would be better.

Chairperson Cardone: The reason that it's partially built because you did not realize that you had to have a Building Permit?

Mr. Massimilian: I…I relied on a...on a recommended to me builder who had done some small interior sheet rocking work and he came on…he checked out in Maryland and he came up here from New Windsor and so forth and to my, to my regret that's what happened. Because I can't do that work myself and I've been injured and so forth.

Mr. Maher: On this plan that was submitted, who submitted this or who drew this up?

Mr. Massimilian: That's a survey actually that's the plot plan.

Mr. Maher: Oh, I'm sorry, you're right. Your plot plan basically…who added some verbiage on it and different items on it? 

Mr. Massimilian: Some of the verbiage I added but some of it could have been the engineer. Are you talking about the…?

Mr. Maher: Do you have a copy of this?

Mr. Massimilian: Yes sir, I do.

Mr. Maher: In the actual area where the garage is shown…it was stated in there 22 x 68.

Mr. Massimilian: That's the entire length. 

Mr. Maher: Right. And then in the center of it it says 1496 sq. ft. per story. 

Mr. Massimilian: I didn't put that in there. That's not my writing. My writing I put leech field in and Town water line in.

Mr. Maher: O.K. I'm just curious because obviously you stated 300 sq. ft. and I calculate almost 600 and here is this 1496 per, I'm just curious.

Mr. Massimilian: Well it’s a…16 x 22 or 70 x 22 that's probably what that means. That's the entire footprint.

Mr. Maher: Per story, that's what concerns me.

Mr. Massimilian: Well it's definitely not, yeah; I don't know what that means per story. That again that was added on. In the back part of the garage there's not two-stories. 

Mr. Maher: No, no, I was there no I understand that it just seems to be growing in each page I turn here that's what concerns me.

Mr. Massimilian: Yeah, no, it's that, there is going to be no other work on that garage cause I couldn't even afford it. Just to get, I need to get the roof done, I need to get the walls done and I need to move on to trying to get the house done. If you probably noticed I'll be back if…if I can keep the house, back before the Board, the front porch needs to be redone completely and that would require a variance, the front corner area. So all these numbers are substantial and like I said its…its…it’s the mortgage over a thousand a month, its an 8% mortgage and I can't do anything with it till this has been renovated.

Mr. Manley: The records of the Building Department here show that the garage is one and a half story and they calculate 1496 sq. ft. per story for a total, they have a total here of 2,992 total new square feet based on what your plans are. 

Mr. Massimilian: That's not correct. That can't be true. 

Mr. Manley: It says the building is 22 x 68.

Mr. Massimilian: That's correct. That would be the 1496.

Mr. Hughes: Well 20 x 60 would give you 1200. I don't know why you would find that hard to believe that.

Mr. Manley: And that's two that would be two-story.

Mr. Massimilian: Right but its not two-story. The second story is only where we're talking about, the front portion of the a…

Mr. Manley: But that's not according that were submitted to the Building Department. The Building Department is showing that there's 2992 of total square feet.  

Mr. Massimilian: That's not correct. I didn't submit plans that would give that level of square footage. That calculation must have been by somebody at…at the office, I…I never did that. Its obvious there's no way that it would be that big.

Mr. Manley: And you were using a gentleman by the name of George Rodriguez to do the work?

Mr. Massimilian: Yes.

Mr. Manley: Is that your contractor now, or no?  

Mr. Massimilian: He is the contractor at that point in time. Yeah and he has worker's compensation and liability. 

Mr. Manley: He's not going to do the construction or is he?

Mr. Massimilian: Yes, he is going to do the construction. I mean I haven't paid him yet because I told him it was contingent on this then he's ready to do it if in fact it's approved.

Chairperson Cardone: So those are the plans that he drew up?

Mr. Massimilian: Yes, I didn't submit…I…I, you know, I think he may have made a mistake on there because he dropped off when this was brought to the Building Department, he dropped off that application because he needed insurance stuff and he put stuff in that application without me seeing it and it was for purposes of a denial and…and but it's not I, the numbers are not right there.

Chairperson Cardone: We would have to have the right ones.

Mr. McKelvey: We would have to have the right numbers. 

Mr. Massimilian: Well, I...I could, which numbers are you looking for? I can tell you on the record right now. Definitely the 1496 for the footprint is correct.

Mr. Donovan: I think the only numbers that we need are the height.

Mr. Massimilian: Well the height, the height is…yes?

Chairperson Cardone: The question on how much of the garage would have that height. Two of the Board Members raised that question. 

Mr. Massimilian: Well that actually if…on the, I mean I did have the architect do a site visit and I'll stand behind this so its 576.

Mr. Maher: Well, is that a ballpark or… 

Mr. Massimilian: That would be a number I would stand by. I did hire her, she's a licensed architect as with this gentleman and she did do a site visit for this. So 576 would be the number of the forward part of the garage that would have a higher roof. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: Is there a C.O. on this building?

Mr. Massimilian: It was pre-existing. It was built in the '20's so I don't believe there was C.O.'s back then. 

Mr. Hughes: Well, whether there was then or not you have to have a C.O. to live in a building now. 

Mr. Massimilian: Well, there's a mortgage on it so I presume when the mortgage was put on they…they had a C.O. issued for it. 

Mr. Hughes: I'd like to see a copy of that before I moved anywhere else. I don't know if we're even entitled to rule on it.

Mr. Massimilian: Which building are you talking about? The garage you're talking about?

Mr. Hughes: The one you say you're living in. 

Mr. Massimilian: What does that have to do with the garage though?

Mr. Hughes: It's all on the same piece isn't it?

Mr. Massimilian: Its on the same…its on the lot.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Massimilian: But I don't see, how is that a requirement of this? I mean, its not even, its…is it part of the package that the C.O. of the building? Because I would gone to the Building Department and got it if it was there. 

Mr. Hughes: Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: If the building was in fact built in the 20's then it would not require a C.O. unless renovations were done to it that require a Permit.

Mr. Hughes: Or there was no continuance. 

Mr. Donovan: And that would be up to the Building Department to make that determination. 

Mr. Hughes: I'd like to know.

Mr. Donovan: The continuance issue would only come up as a non-conforming use. If in fact the building was vacant for ten years but otherwise complied with zoning you could still move into it.

Mr. Hughes: Providing its another residence.

Mr. Donovan: And not a grocery store, correct. But I mean, so the issue, unless there was work done requiring a Building Permit a Certificate of Occupancy or compliance if it gets what's called a pre-date letter from the Building Department it can be occupied.

Mr. Hughes: With no electric and no water?

Mr. Donovan: That's a separate issue. You keep adding things on. It’s a separate issue that if there's building code violations the Building Department could take actions to make sure no one occupies it if its unsafe.

Mr. Massimilian: The building has electric. But again I'm not sure how that relates to the request here for a garage area variance. If someone could explain that, does it have relevance? I could get you whatever you need. 

Mr. Donovan: Well the issue of other potential violations on the property has some relevance but I mean obviously the issue that’s before the Board is the area variances.

Mr. Massimilian: Right. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions? Any other questions or comments from the public?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

(Time Noted – 8:05 PM)

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 25, 2009             (Resumption for decision: 8:45 PM) 



ANDREW MASSIMILIAN


8 WEST STONE STREET, NBGH







(84-5-6.1) R-3/O

Applicant is seeking area variances for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the rear lot line setback, the side yard setback and the maximum height of an accessory structure (garage) to reconstruct an accessory building.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Andrew Massimilian, 8 West Stone Street, seeking area variances for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the rear lot line setback, the side yard setback and the maximum height of an accessory structure to reconstruct an accessory building. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Manley: I would say that since I've been part of this Board we've always been very careful to really review these accessory structures especially specifically with respect to height. I have concerns not just with the height but with a lot of the plans that were submitted and I have a lot of concerns with this particular application.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval on this application? 

(No response) 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for disapproval?

Mr. Maher: So moved.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion for disapproval is carried.
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(Time Noted – 8:46 PM)
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KATHIE GOOLER



32 MILL STREET, WALLKILL







(4-1-27.23) R/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the side yards setbacks to build a 24' x 46' side addition on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Kathie Gooler                

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, June 16th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday June 17th. The applicant sent out eleven registered letters, eight were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: If you would identify yourself for the record?

Ms. Gooler: Kathie Gooler, 32 Mill Street, Wallkill.

Chairperson Cardone: Could you speak closer to the mic? Or even take it off it might be easier.

Mr. McKelvey: Take it right off pull it right off.

Ms. Gooler: Kathie Gooler, 32 Mill Street, Wallkill, NY.

Chairperson Cardone: And if you would state your request.

Ms. Gooler: Side variance for an addition. 

Chairperson Cardone: And this addition would be larger than the house right now?

Mr. Braun: Yeah, I'm Paul Braun, 1660 State Highway 51, (Inaudible). I'm helping Kathie with her addition. I drew the plans and I did all the work with the drawings and so…

Mr. Hughes: I can't hear you.

Mr. Braun: I did all the work with the drawings and the survey.

Ms. Eaton: How many bedrooms do you have in your current house?

Ms. Gooler: Three.

Ms. Eaton: Are you adding any additional bedrooms?

Ms. Gooler: One.

Ms. Eaton: Are you on septic?

Ms. Gooler: Yes.

Ms. Eaton: Do you know the size of your tank?

Mr. Braun: It's 1200 gallons. 

Ms. Eaton: I think its supposed to be 1250 gallons for a …

Mr. Braun: It may be.

Ms. Eaton: …four bedrooms.

Mr. Braun: It may be 1250.

Ms. Eaton: We need to know the answer to that.

Mr. Braun: O.K.

Mr. Maher: Generally the size of the tank is generally the ultimate issue is the size of the leech field obviously.

Mr. Hughes: That's right.

Mr. Maher: Based on the additional bedroom and the capacities.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have any record of the perc tests from your original?

Ms. Gooler: From my original what?

Mr. Hughes: The original septic system.

Ms. Gooler: No.

Mr. Hughes: How old is it?

Ms. Gooler: The house I believe was built in '92.

Mr. Hughes: So there should be come records on file in the Building Department. Your length of your leech field like Mr. Maher says will regulate how big a tank it is that you're going to need. There may be as big as a 1500 depending upon your percs and your leech field lengths.

Mr. Maher: Have you had any problems in the past with the leech fields at all in the area? I know there is a high water table there. I know there's a water problem constantly. I'm well aware of that. 

Ms. Gooler: Actually we just put drains out in the front of the house.

Chairperson Cardone: Did you bring that dirt in that's there or they brought that in?

Ms. Gooler: (Inaudible) Actually the Town put it there we asked them to dump it there so they put it there.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. 

Mr. Maher: Now you show a floor plan for the main living level, full basement underneath it? 

Mr. Braun: Yeah, full basement.

Mr. Maher: Finished? Unfinished?

Mr. Braun: Not at this time, no, maybe, maybe in the future. Right?

Mr. Manley: Just for the record, I have a copy of the Plan Review from the Town. It indicates that if a variance is obtained for the new application be advised that along with stamped plans you will have to hire a licensed design professional to upgrade your septic tank and leech fields. This will require a Septic Permit. Joseph Mattina, Code Compliance Plan Review, Town of Newburgh. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? The report from the Orange County Department of Planning is Local Determination. 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight's applications. And I would ask you, in the interest of time, if you would step out into the hallway and we will call you back shortly.

(Time Noted – 8:19 PM)

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 25, 2009             (Resumption for decision: 8:46 PM) 



KATHIE GOOLER



32 MILL STREET, WALLKILL







(4-1-27.23) R/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the side yards setbacks to build a 24' x 46' side addition on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Kathie Gooler, 32 Mill Street, seeking area variances for the side yards setbacks to build a 24' x 46' side addition on the residence. 

This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. And this is the one, Ron, with the septic. 

Mr. Hughes: I'll move it for approval with the condition that the design professional provide that septic and the leech fields and the perc tests.

Mr. Manley: Prior to the Building Permit?

Mr. Hughes: Not just prior to the Building Permit.

Mr. Donovan: How about this? How about subject to satisfactory compliances with all Building Department requirements. 

Mr. Hughes: So be it.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Brenda is the second on that?

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.
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OTHER BOARD BUSINESS

BRIAN BARBERA



273 ROUTE 17K, NBGH







(90-6-1) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking a use variance for change use/non-conforming to non-conforming to convert building to a dry cleaners and a non-conforming building enlarged (prior built) now being addressed as a Special Use Permit.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. under Other Board Business, last month we had an application from Brian Barbera at 273 Route 17K, Newburgh.

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Is that microphone on? Thank you.

Ms. Stradar: Good evening I'm Elizabeth Stradar the law firm of Northrop & Stradar. I'm here on behalf of Mr. Barbera was before this Board hoping to get a Special Permit allowed by the Town to continue a non-conforming use of equal or lesser impact to the immediately prior use which was a dentist's office. We submitted a packet of information to the Board this week, which included the plans, a pseudo site-plan, description of the green cleaners. I had read that Mr. Hughes wanted information about the machine and I tried to provide that in the packet. Some information about the Kims intend to run the dry cleaner, their hours, stated that we didn't believe that there be an increase demand for Town services. Does the Board have any questions?  

Mr. Manley: I haven't had an opportunity to fully review the documents that were submitted. I've reviewed some but not everything. 

Ms. Stradar: Are there questions that I could answer for you?

Mr. Manley: Not at this time. I'm still developing my question based on what was submitted.

Ms. Stradar: I thought perhaps you were looking for answers on the documents, that's all.

Mr. Manley: No I'm actually marking them up and reviewing them. I haven't had, you know, an opportunity with the other items that were before the Board this week I hadn't had a full opportunity to go through everything. 

Chairperson Cardone: We did receive quite a bit of material and we have to go through all of that material that we received. 

Ms. Stradar: Yeah, I was trying to be more fulsome to give you answers to everything you were looking for having read the minutes…

Mr. McKelvey: We just have to…

Ms. Stradar: …of the last meeting.

Mr. McKelvey: We have to have time to read it all. 

Ms. Stradar: Fair, I'm not disputing it. 

Ms. Drake: I received it tonight. 

Mr. Manley: The information was appreciated though.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes. 

Ms. Stradar: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: It appears to be complete too. I got probably half way into it. 

Ms. Stradar: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: One of the things just to be fair…

Ms. Stradar: Sure.

Mr. Hughes: …with you I know you're here for the first time tonight for this. We're under the understanding that there's a hearing for a zoning change for that particular parcel as well.

Ms. Stradar: Yeah, I just learned about that. It's before the Town Board. I think it's next month?

Mr. Barbera: (Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: The 7th?

Mr. Barbera: No. July 20th.

Ms. Stradar: July 20th.

Mr. Hughes: So we up to sixty-two days to make decisions and to avoid a cross fire and get in the middle of something where it may just behoove you to wait and go through that rather than to do this and the reason I say that is, as I'm sure you're well aware of, if we do that and make that variance then its subjected to the bulk requirements and you'll be right back here again.

Ms. Stradar: Sure.

Mr. Hughes: Counsel, could maybe enlighten counsel a little bit here for the methodology of why…?

Mr. Donovan: Well I think counsel is probably pretty well enlightened so…

Ms. Stradar: Thank you.

Mr. Donovan: Well obviously one of the issues to discuss with your client is whether or no, you know, if we proceed under a variance and you occupy it under a Special Permit…

Ms. Stradar: Right.

Mr. Donovan: …under the prior zoning, I don't know whether that has any constraints versus the new zoning and I'm really not well versed at all in the new zoning but if it makes you a permitted use it may be more beneficial to you in the future to operate as a permitted use.

Ms. Stradar: Sure it would be a permitted use. This if we were be granted the Special Permit tonight it would allow the dry cleaning business to get moving on what they were doing. It would just save a months time. 

Mr. Donovan: Right. But the zone change would also make you a permitted use…

Ms. Stradar: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: …you'd all the bulk requirements and everything like that?

Ms. Stradar: Yes, that's my understanding.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: We have some concerns because of, excuse me, there's a drainage and water easement on the property and some other things and I believe that parking and some of the building that was put up where there are some columns in the middle of the parking lot maybe something that would prevent you from fitting into your bulk requirements.

Ms. Stradar: I haven't looked at it closely. I was just advised of that. As far as the structure off the back I haven't seen the property but what's been explained to me and I have the prior plans from Dr. Kopman. It’s a canopy that extended off the back and then what Dr. Kopman did was put walls within the canopy so it doesn't go to the border of the canopy its inside the canopy. And I guess there's no electric or anything he just stored a car in there.    

Mr. Hughes: Just, you know, in order to be fair with everybody involved…

Ms. Stradar: Sure.

Mr. Hughes: ...there's a lot of twists and turns to it how it got to this point.

Chairperson Cardone: So the feeling of the Board is that we need more time to review the materials and we'll arrive at a decision next month?

Mr. Donovan: Just to be clear, you have to make a decision by next month.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Is there something else in the meantime that can bolster your position if you can get that paperwork to us for our package for next month meeting?

Ms. Stradar: Sure, absolutely. What's the date of your meeting next month?

Mr. Donovan: The fourth Thursday, whatever it is. Betty, do you know what it is? 

Ms. Gennarelli: August…

Chairperson Cardone: 24th.

Mr. Donovan: Are we going to skip July?

Ms. Gennarelli: I'm sorry. The schedule is so busy. I'm already working on September's agenda so I just got a little confused.

Ms. Drake: July 23rd.

Ms. Gennarelli: July 23rd.

Ms. Stradar: O.K. So we'll have the Town Board meeting on the 20th so we may or may not need to be back here on the 23rd.  O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Ms. Stradar: Thank you. And if you have any questions in the meantime, give me a call. Thanks.
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TUAN CAO




BOULDER ROAD, NBGH







(99-1-4.2) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback and lot area to build a new single-family residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Also last month Tuan Cao, on Boulder Road, was here and we had requested...there was a question about an easement on Boulder Road, which is a paper street.

Mr. Donovan: I had raised the issue as to whether or not a variance from the requirements of Section 280 - A of the New York State Town Law was required. I spoke to the Town attorney and what I discovered was and why the applicant didn't know it last month I'm not really sure but the Town has granted an easement over Boulder Road to the publicly maintained highway and my concerns relative to the legality of compliance of 280-A are satisfied I've got a bunch of information from the Town attorney that I've passed on to the Board. What we have is an easement that's not been executed. So I don't know whether that's been executed and filed. We do have a resolution from the Town Board authorizing the easement but I don't know whether that easement has yet been filed with the Clerk's Office, the County Clerk's Office.

Chairperson Cardone: Is it the feeling of the Board that you'd like to wait to…?

Mr. Hughes: I would like to see that in writing that it's been filed so that we can move on in a legal fashion.

Mr. McKelvey: We another month for that too, right?

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Manley: I would just think it might be easer just to dispose of the Board business and perhaps just make it a condition of the approval that upon satisfactory receipt of the easement that's been recorded in the County that the Building Department be authorized to go ahead and issue a Permit.

Mr. Hughes: Counsel? Is that permissible?

Mr. Donovan: It lies in the sound discretion of the Board. It's permissible. Yes. So I mean…

Mr. Hughes: There's no double jeopardy in the fact that if we don't get that thing we're looking for in writing that they go ahead and issue a Permit and start working?

Mr. Donovan: It's a condition of our approval. I can't guarantee no one makes a mistake but the idea is the variance is not issued unless the easement is filed and certified copies of the easement are given to the Town. We can make that; certainly make that a condition of our approval because it’s a condition that's related directly to our concern as to whether or not this property actually has access to a public street. This easement gives them access to the public street. The easement comes from the Town of Newburgh so I would be satisfied with that. Now we don't have it executed or filed yet to our knowledge.

Mr. Hughes: Who is the owner in fee of this paper road?

Mr. Donovan: I don't know the answer to that.

Mr. Hughes: Well if the Town isn't the owner how do they have the authorization to do so?

Mr. Donovan: The Town on the theory that a filed map, this is accurate, roads shown on a filed map are deemed offered for dedication. So since Boulder Road is deemed offered for dedication to the Town of Newburgh the Town of Newburgh Town Board takes the position that we can grant an easement for ingress and egress over a road that's intended to be or at least offered for dedication to the Town.

Mr. Hughes: Is there some kind of maintenance agreement that goes with this?

Mr. Donovan: I have not seen a maintenance agreement.

Mr. Hughes: Then how are they going to get in and out of there in the wintertime?

Mr. Donovan: Well right now they're the only property benefited by that easement so it would be their obligation and responsibility to plow the snow and maintain that because its nothing more than a driveway.

Mr. Hughes: No hook with the Town on liabilities?

Mr. Donovan: No. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: Again if you want to review the information that's fine, you want to make it a condition of approval that's also fine.

Mr. Manley: I'd be willing make a motion at this time. There's no sense to hold it up. If that thing is ready in a couple of weeks there's no reason why these people shouldn't be able to move forward if that's the wishes of the rest of the Board? So I'd be willing to make a motion that we approve contingent on a receipt of the County of the recorded necessary paperwork for the…

Mr. Donovan: Easement.

Mr. Manley: …easement.

Mr. Maher: I'll second. 

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: No



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.
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OTHER BOARD BUSINESS

WILLIAM & LYNDA WANDS

10 ECHO LANE, NBGH







(27-3-5) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yards setbacks to build a rear addition on residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next item on the agenda William and Lynda Wands, 10 Echo Lane. If you recall Mr. and Mrs. Wands were here seeking to construct a dining room onto their home and the Board recommended that they also add the deck because they said they were planning to add a deck at a later date and so a part of the decision included a deck. In the meantime, and Mr. Wands do you have the plot plan?

Mr. Wands: I have the actual plans that were stamped and that the variance (inaudible), new prints (inaudible) you'll find that the deck is now five feet more on my property and goes approximately seven feet.

Ms. Gennarelli: Mr. Wands, could you just do me a favor please and grab the mic because this is being recorded?

Mr. Wands: O.K.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: We have copies, I believe, in your packet of the new plans and this was the original plan.

Mr. Wands: Correct. And they were the ones that…actually this was where my variance was actually drawn up from and was agreed to. Now being a big shot and figuring I could actually just change things, I actually brought this in about five feet closer to the house but I did go seven feet back because I have like this swale in the back of the house and I want the deck to sit in so I don't need railings and you know, have two stairs down and I won't need to haul my a** up and sit in a playpen, cause that's what it is to me now but…and its safe for everybody. So it's actually five feet narrower and seven feet longer, its still twenty-two inches high.

Mr. Hughes: It's an off setting penalty.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: The same square footage.  

Mr. Wands: Approximately, yes. 

Mr. Hughes: I move we approve. 

Mr. McKelvey: Second. 

Mr. Donovan: I think let's back up for a second. I think it would be helpful if the resolution of the Board was that the… Is it completed now? 

Mr. Wands: No, I haven't started. I'm waiting to start it so I wouldn't get... 

Mr. Donovan: So the deck as now proposed is in substantial compliance with the variance earlier granted, so that way he then avoids a new application. That's what you said, is that right Ron?

Mr. Donovan: That's exactly what I said. 

Chairperson Cardone: That's right.

Mr. Hughes: He's my interpreter.

Mr. Wands: And a darn good one. I'm not starting any trouble.

Mr. McKelvey: No, it's an even trade off.

Mr. Wands: Yes, I really appreciate it and this way I can go ahead and get some concrete in and move into my next phase. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Are we going to take a vote on that?

Mr. Hughes: We should.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.  

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Mr. Wands: Thank you very much.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Wands: Would you like to keep this? (The plans shown at the meeting)

Chairperson Cardone: Betty?

Ms. Gennarelli: Can we have those then? Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: Do you want to give them to Betty?

Mr. Wands: I've got another set at home. 

Ms. Gennarelli: I'll take them. Thank you.

Mr. Wands: Thank you.
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Chairperson Cardone: And next every one has a copy of the proposed Town of Newburgh Local Law entitled Zoning of the Code Newburgh Flood Plains. If anyone has any input into this please e-mail me or get in touch with me or let me know, in writing. 

Mr. Hughes: When does it have to be in by?

Mr. Donovan: July 5. That's when it's supposed to be adopted by. Basically every community is going through this. FEMA was in the area in Orange County re-mapping all the flood plains and now each community has to readopt new flood plain regulations otherwise people affected won't be able to buy flood insurance. 

Chairperson Cardone: Now the other Local Law proposed Local Law amending Chapter 185 entitled Zoning of the Code of the Town of Newburgh and the Zoning Map of the Town of Newburgh to rezone a parcel at New York State Route 17K and Arbor Drive. Everyone has a copy of that and I believe there is going to be a Public Hearing on the 20th of July if anyone has any comments or…

Mr. Manley: It would be nice if the Board, you know, perhaps commented with respect to the area in general with that B Zone that the Town just not look to rezone that particular parcel but also look at this Board had approved a variance for the Schoonmaker office across the street from Arbor Drive or next to it.

Chairperson Cardone: Perhaps look at both of those.

Mr. Manley: That maybe it might be a good opportunity to kind of take care of that.

Ms. Drake: Take care of the whole area instead of just... 

Mr. Hughes: Let's refer to it as that municipal corridor that commercial corridor.

Mr. McKelvey: Because you've got Rapid Tire, you've got Cumberland Farms all in that area.

Mr. Manley: Does Cumberland Farms need to be addressed? Does Rapid Tire? I mean are those areas that are grand fathered or they currently B Zoned and if they're not then maybe its time to up-date that just so that those individuals won't have to come before this Board for everything that they do.

Mr. Donovan: So you're looking for a more comprehensive analysis as opposed to just focusing in on just one parcel.

Mr. Hughes: I think that would be beneficial for everyone.

Mr. Manley: The other thing is there is supposed to be a traffic light that they've been trying to get there for years at that intersection. They have the money, the State DOT just hasn't, it's probably been about five years that they've had the money.

Mr. McKelvey: They keep saying this year.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. McKelvey: Every year they say it.

Mr. Hughes: But I thought they took an alternative step with that and said that because the one went in at the school and the one that there is on Rock Cut Road?

Mr. McKelvey: No.

Mr. Manley: Nope. They have the money.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Mr. Manley: Its just the State has not scheduled it. 

Mr. McKelvey: Bill Larkin got it. 

Ms. Drake: Obviously you would know because you live over there.

Mr. McKelvey: Bill Larkin is the one that got that money. 

Mr. Manley: Its like $90,000 that's just sitting there waiting.

Mr. Hughes: I wouldn't think they would put a traffic signal that close to the other one.

Mr. Manley: They can sequence.

Mr. Hughes: I know they coordinate the lights and they time them.

Ms. Eaton: Drive down 300 and see them.

Mr. McKelvey: The bad thing about it is getting out and making a left hand turn there and with the school there, the kids going to school. They have a crossing guard but…

Chairperson Cardone: So we will send a letter to the Town Board with our input. Everyone has the minutes from last month, has everyone had a chance review them? And any corrections, additions, deletions? 

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we approve them.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor say Aye?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Do we have a motion to adjourn?

Ms. Drake: I'll make that motion.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a second?

 Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor say Aye?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone:  O.K. The meeting is adjourned.
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